
 
NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17 September 2021 Our Ref Cabinet Panel on Community/30.09.2021 
 Contact. Committee Services 
 Direct Dial. (01462) 474655 
 Email. committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
 
To: Members of the Committee: Councillors Judi Billing (Joint Chair), Sam Collins (Joint Chair), 

Daniel Allen, Ruth Brown, Sarah Dingley, Jean Green, Tony Hunter, Mandi Tandi and 
Kay Tart 

 
 Substitutes: Councillors Ian Albert, Juan Cowell, Michael Muir, Lisa Nash and Terry Tyler 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A  

 

MEETING OF THE CABINET PANEL ON COMMUNITY 
 

to be held as a  
 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
 

On 
 

THURSDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2021 AT 7.30 PM  

 
 

 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Thompson 
Service Director – Legal and Community 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk


 

 
 

**MEMBERS PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU DOWNLOAD ALL  
AGENDAS AND REPORTS VIA THE MOD.GOV APPLICATION 

ON YOUR TABLET BEFORE ATTENDING THE MEETING** 
 
 

Agenda 
Part l 

 
Item  Page 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Members are required to notify any substitutions by midday on the day of the 
meeting. 
 
Late substitutions will not be accepted and Members attending as a substitute 
without having given due notice will not be able to take part in the meeting. 

 

   
2.   MINUTES - 19 JULY 2021 

To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 19 July 2021. 

(Pages 5 
- 8) 

   
3.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any 
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chair 
of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant 
item on the agenda.  Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members 
declaring a Declarable Interest, wishing to exercise a ‘Councillor Speaking 
Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public 
area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the 
debate and vote. 

 

   
4.   NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS 

Members should notify the Chair of other business which they wish to be 
discussed at the end of either Part I or Part II business set out in the agenda. 
They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business 
being considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Chair will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered. 

 

   
5.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To receive petitions, comments and questions from the public including: 
 
1) Hertfordshire Services for Young People; 
2) Imajica Theatre Company CIC. 

 

   
6.   INFORMATION NOTE AND GROUP DISCUSSION 

INFORMATION NOTE OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR COMMERCIAL 
 
To consider the Information Note entitled ‘Engagement with Young People’. 

(Pages 9 
- 10) 

   



 

7.   MEMBERS' DISCUSSION 
The Chair to lead a Members’ discussion on potential actions arising from the 
Group Discussion. 

 

   
8.   ACTIONS ARISING AND WORK PROGRAMME 

To record any actions arising from the Group Discussion for inclusion in the 
Panel’s Work Programme for 2021/22. 

 

   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET PANEL ON COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CO-OPERATIVE 
DEVELOPMENT 

 
MEETING HELD AS A VIRTUAL MEETING  

ON MONDAY, 19TH JULY, 2021 AT 7.30 PM 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Judi Billing (Joint Chair), Sam Collins (Joint Chair), 

Ruth Brown, Sarah Dingley, Jean Green, Michael Muir, Mandi Tandi, 
Juan Cowell and Ian Albert (In place of Kay Tart) 

 
In Attendance: Steve Crowley (Service Director – Commercial), Sarah Kingsley 

(Communications Manager), Danny Pearson (Assistant Community 
Engagement Officer) and Anna Gouveia (Committee, Member and 
Scrutiny Officer) 

  

Also Present: At the commencement of the meeting approximately 2 members of the 
public, including registered speakers. 

  
 

10 WELCOME AND REMOTE/PARTLY REMOTE MEETINGS PROTOCOL SUMMARY  
 
Audio recording - 09 seconds 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to this virtual Cabinet Panel on Community Engagement and 
Co-operative Development meeting that was being conducted with Members, Officers and 
Members of the Public at various locations, communicating via audio/video and online, and 
advised that there was the opportunity for the public and press to listen and view proceedings. 
 
The Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer undertook a roll call and referred Members to 
the Remote/Partly Remote Meetings Protocol Summary included with the agenda and the full 
version which was available on the Council’s website which included information regarding: 
 

 Live Streaming; 

 Noise Interference; 

 Rules of Debate; and 

 Voting. 
 
The Joint-Chair, Councillor Sam Collins, started the meeting proper. 
 

11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Audio recording – 3 minutes 20 seconds 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Daniel Allen, Tony Hunter and Kay 
Tart. 
 
Having given due notice Councillor Ian Albert advised that he would be substituting for 
Councillor Kay Tart and Councillor Michael Muir advised that he would be substituting for 
Councillor Tony Hunter.  
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Monday, 19th July, 2021  

12 MINUTES - 7 JUNE 2021  
 
Audio recording – 3 minutes 51 seconds 
 
Councillor Sam Collins proposed, Councillor Judi Billing seconded and it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Cabinet Panel held on 7 June 2021 be 
approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chair. 
 

13 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio recording – 4 minutes 30 seconds 
 
(1) The Chair advised that the meeting was about Community Engagement with a focus on 

social media; 
 

(2) The Chair welcomed everyone participating at the meeting; 
 
(3) The Chair advised that, in accordance with Council Policy, the meeting would be audio 

recorded as well as filmed. The audio recording would be available on the Council’s 
website and the film recording via the NHDC YouTube channel; 

 
(4) The Chair drew attention to the item on the agenda front pages regarding Declarations 

of Interest and reminded Members that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any 
Declarations of Interest needed to be declared immediately prior to the item in question. 

 
14 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  

 
Audio recording – 5 minutes 11 seconds 
 
There was no other business notified. 
 

15 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Audio recording - 5 minutes 13 seconds 
 
Mr Nick White, an administrator on the Royston Reporting Facebook page, which had 
approximately 15,000 users, gave a brief introduction to his organisation and use of social 
media. 
 
Ms Catherine Bennett, Citizen’s Advice North Hertfordshire, gave a brief introduction to her 
organisation and use of social media. 
 
The Chair led a general discussion on community engagement and social media. 
 
The following Members took part in the discussion: 
 

 Councillor Sam Collins; 

 Councillor Ruth Brown; 

 Councillor Ian Albert; 

 Councillor Sarah Dingley. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Monday, 19th July, 2021  

Points raised in the discussion included: 
 

 How best to share North Herts information on social media pages in the region; 

 Some Councillors already shared some content to pages in their region; 

 Part of the Councillor’s role should be to share content which would be of interest to 
their local community; 

 Key messages, for example on early bin collections, could be shared to some groups; 

 It was the responsibility of the page moderators to share NHDC content where relevant; 

 The Community Engagement Team did post some content to local sites; 

 It was not easy to share from the Engage North Herts Facebook site; 

 Citizen’s Advice North Herts now did webchats, telephone call backs and tried to 
respond to emails within 48 hours; 

 Posts on the NHDC Facebook site could encourage people to share content. 
 
The Communications Manager advised that: 
 

 The Council did not have the resource to post news items to multiple groups around the 
district, due to the number of different groups. On emergency local issues, for example 
risk of flooding, the Council did try to share posts to the relevant local social media 
pages; 

 It was felt that members of social media groups did not want the Council posting all 
messages to their groups; individuals or Councillors could post if they felt it was 
appropriate. 

 
16 INFORMATION NOTE AND GROUP DISCUSSION  

 
Audio recording – 23 minutes 12 seconds 
 
The Service Director – Commercial introduced the Information Note and the Communications 
Manager drew attention to the following: 
 

 A new NHDC website was being developed and the new site would be launched in 
sections from September – feedback from the public on the new site was encouraged; 

 A ‘Waste Warriors’ public Facebook group had been launched by waste services 
covering waste reduction; 

 NHDC was currently looking at a ‘social listening tool’ which could scan local pages and 
use AI to tell what the community was interested in; 

 NHDC was looking at online engagement tools as part of a review of the engagement 
strategy, one being a ‘town hall for the digital era’. 

 
The following Members took part in the discussion: 
 

 Councillor Judi Billing; 

 Councillor Ian Albert; 

 Councillor Sarah Dingley. 
 
Comments included: 
 

 The idea of participatory budgeting, particularly with young people, was welcomed; 

 It would be useful to use the language of NHDC in any digital tools which were used, 
e.g. Town Talk instead of Town Hall; 

 It was not possible for Councillors to monitor all the social media pages all of the time; 

 Improved digital ways of seeking the views of younger people on the future of the district 
areas was encouraged; 

 A demonstration of the online engagement tool could be given to a future meeting of the 
Cabinet Panel, if NHDC decided to go ahead with it; 

Page 7



Monday, 19th July, 2021  

 Those who did not use the internet would also need to be considered in any new 
engagement strategy. 

 
The Communications Manager advised that: 
 

 the online engagement tools could be customised, and Cornwall was using one if people 
wanted to see an example; 

 data from the listening tool was anonymised so people could not be identified. 
 

17 MEMBERS' DISCUSSION  
 
Audio recording – 44 minutes 29 seconds 
 
The Chair led a discussion amongst Members on community engagement and social media. 
 
The following Members commented: 
 

 Councillor Judi Billing; 

 Councillor Ruth Brown. 
 
Comments included: 
 

 Councillors wanted to engage with as many people as possible, using traditional and 
modern methods, but there was no easy solution; 

 The Communications Team could provide some social media training to Members which 
could cater to Members’ different levels of knowledge; 

 The Waste Warriors Facebook page was a really useful page for sharing ideas about 
sustainability and everyone was invited to engage, share and participate. 

 
18 ACTIONS ARISING AND WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Audio recording – 49 minutes 51 seconds 
 
Councillor Sam Collins commented on the following: 
 

 Suggestions for a theme for the next meeting were welcomed; 

 Council meetings were no longer appearing on the calendar on the Council’s website. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Community Engagement Team Leader be requested to update the 
Work Programme with the following action points arising from the evening’s discussion: 
 
(1) To consider the provision of training for Members on social media; 
 
(2) To review the use of the meetings calendar on the NHDC website; 
 
(3) To consider a clear theme and direction for the next meeting due to take place on 6 

September 2021. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.25 pm 

 
Chair 

 

Page 8



 

CABINET PANEL ON THE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CO-OPERATIVE 
DEVELOPMENT  

30 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 

*PART 1 – PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 

 
TITLE OF INFORMATION NOTE: HOW THE AUTHORITY MIGHT BETTER ENGAGE WITH 
YOUNG PEOPLE (11 TO 22YRS) 
 
INFORMATION NOTE OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR COMMERCIAL 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
PRIORITY: BE A MORE WELCOMING AND INCLUSIVE COUNCIL AND ENABLE AN 
ENTERPRISING AND CO-OPERATIVE ECONOMY 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This note highlights proposed items scheduled in the work programme for the Cabinet Panel 

on Community Engagement and Co-operative Development for 2020/21 following the initial 
meeting. As at Appendix A, the Work Programme/Action Tracker allow the scene to be set 
for evaluation and the agreement of topics for 2020/21. This allows the Cabinet Panel to set 
a work programme which enables open discussion that may lead to recommendations to 
Cabinet /the relevant Executive Members or Service Director, regarding actions that they 
believe that the Council should be taking to address community engagement and Co-
operative Development.  

 
2. STEPS TO DATE 

 
2.1 . There are no steps to date as this is the first meeting set up to investigate this specific topic.  

  
3. INFORMATION TO NOTE 

 
3.1 This Cabinet Panel aims to provide the opportunity for organisations delivering services 

and activities for young people and young people themselves to discuss how North Herts 
Council can better engage with this age group. The Panel are interested in hearing the 
views of young people; listening to their concerns about local issues that affect them and 
how they can have a voice within local democracy. 

3.2 The panel will be receiving presentations from: 
Laura Butcher – Hertfordshire Services for Young People 
Samantha Hough – Artistic Director of Imajica Theatre Company CIC 

 
3.2.1 Discussion at this meeting will be facilitated and focus around three questions to be 

posed to the group: 
1) What would you say are the biggest issues facing young people in our 

area? 
2)  How can we encourage more young people to engage with local issues? 
3) How can North Herts Council help you to be more involved in the local 

issues that you are personally interested in? 
 

3.2 The Panel will seek to ensure that consideration of agenda items minimises additional 
burdens on staff resources. Wherever possible, requests are made for the presentation 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



of documents already in existence rather than the production of new documents 
specifically for the Panel. 

 
3.3 Attendance from external bodies and members of the public is actively encouraged.  
 
3.4 This is a non-decision-making advisory body and therefore this or any notes/reports to 

the Panel do not include a recommendation on a key Executive decision and have not 
been referred to in the Forward Plan. However, recommendations for action from the 
Panel for consideration by Cabinet may do so. This will therefore need to be borne in 
mind for any recommendations of the Panel. 

 
 

4. NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 Other topics for consideration and inclusion in the Panel’s work programme will be 

considered at each meeting. When considering additional topics, their risk assessment 
and prioritisation will ensure that the most appropriate items are taken forward to the work 
programme 

 
 
5. APPENDICES 
 
None 
 
 
6. CONTACT OFFICERS 
 

Author: Policy and Community Engagement 
Claire Morgan – Community Engagement Team Leader  
Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk 
01462 474226 

 
Contributors:  

Commercial 
Steve Crowley – Commercial Director 
Steve.crowley@north-herts.gov.uk 

  01462 474211 
 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 None  

Page 10

mailto:Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Steve.crowley@north-herts.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 19 JULY 2021
	6 INFORMATION NOTE AND GROUP DISCUSSION

